

April 25, 2023

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2304

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1733-1738 of the Senate Journal and pages 2017-2023 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2304 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, replace "section" with "sections"

Page 1, line 1, after "53-06.1-01" insert "and 53-06.1-03, subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-10.1, subsection 5 of section 53-06.1-11, and subsection 10 of section 53-06.1-15.1"

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "the definitions of alcoholic beverage establishment and manufacturer, approval for a gaming site authorization and licensure, the maximum number of gaming sites allowed, the maximum number of pull tab devices allowed at a site,"

Page 1, line 2, after "establishments" insert ", electronic fifty-fifty raffles, rent limits for electronic pull tab devices, and the imposition of monetary fines for violations by third-party businesses; to provide for a legislative management study; to provide an effective date; and to declare an emergency"

Page 1, line 11, after the second "establishment" insert "licensed under chapter 5-02"

Page 1, line 12, replace ". This" with "by guests on the premises. The term"

Page 1, line 12, replace "an off-sale" with "a"

Page 1, line 13, remove "An alcoholic beverage"

Page 1, removes lines 14 through 16

Page 3, line 2, after the second comma insert "electronic pull tab device operating system."

Page 3, line 3, overstrike "a fifty-fifty" and insert immediately thereafter "electronic"

Page 3, line 5, after "device" insert "or system"

Page 4, after line 11, insert:

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 53-06.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

53-06.1-03. Permits, site authorization, and licenses - Organization requirements - Site inspection.

1. Except as authorized by the attorney general, an organization that has its license suspended or revoked, or has relinquished or not renewed its license and not disbursed its net proceeds, is ineligible for a license or permit. Only one of two or more closely related organizations may have a license or permit at one time. A college or university fraternity, sorority, or club is not closely related to an educational organization. An organization shall apply for a permit as follows:

- a. An organization recognized as a public-spirited organization by the governing body of a city or county may apply for permits. A local permit may allow the organization to conduct only raffles, bingo, or sports pools. A restricted event permit may allow the organization to conduct only raffles, bingo, sports pools, paddlewheels, twenty-one, and poker. The organization or closely related organizations as a whole may only award a primary prize that does not exceed eight thousand dollars and total prizes of all games do not exceed forty thousand dollars per year. These maximum prize amounts do not apply to raffles conducted under chapter 20.1-08. The determination of what is a "public-spirited organization" is within the sole discretion of the governing body. An organization shall disclose on the application its intended use of the net income from the gaming activity. A governing body may issue a permit for games to be held at designated times and places.
 - b. An organization shall apply to the governing body of the city or county in which the proposed site is located. Application must be made on a form prescribed by the attorney general. Approval may be granted at the discretion of the governing body. A governing body may establish a fee not to exceed twenty-five dollars for each permit. A permit must be on a fiscal year basis from July first to June thirtieth or on a calendar-year basis.
 - c. An organization that has a local permit or a restricted event permit may use the net income from the gaming activity for any purpose that does not violate this chapter or gaming rules, unless the organization is a state political party or legislative district party committee, the organization may use the net income from a raffle for a political purpose. For purposes of this subdivision, a public-spirited use includes a political purpose.
 - d. An organization that has a restricted event permit is restricted to one event per year and:
 - (1) May not pay remuneration to employees for personal services;
 - (2) Shall use chips as wagers;
 - (3) Shall redeem a player's chips for merchandise prizes or cash;
 - (4) Shall disburse net income to eligible uses referenced in subdivision c, if applicable, and in section 53-06.1-11.1; and
 - (5) Shall file a report prescribed by the attorney general with the governing body and attorney general.
2. An eligible organization shall apply for a license to conduct only bingo, electronic quick shot bingo, raffles, calcuttas, pull tabs, punchboards, twenty-one, paddlewheels, poker, or sports pools by:
- a. First securing approval for a site authorization from the governing body of the city or county in which the proposed site is located. Approval, which may be granted at the discretion of the governing body, must be recorded on a site authorization form that is to accompany the license application to the attorney general for final

approval. An eligible organization may request a specific site location on the site authorization form.

(1) A governing body ~~may~~:

- (a) May not require an eligible organization to donate net proceeds to the city, county, or related political subdivision or for community programs or services within the city or county as a condition for receiving a site authorization from the city or county. ~~A governing body may;~~
- (b) May not deny a site authorization solely because the eligible organization has not conducted gaming at the site;
- (c) May not require that an eligible organization be located at a specific site as a condition of site authorization;
- (d) May limit the type of games and the number of electronic pull tab devices or tables for the game of twenty-one per site, and the number of sites upon which a licensed organization may conduct games within the city or county. ~~A governing body may; and~~
- (e) May charge a one hundred dollar fee for a site authorization; ~~and.~~

(2) This subsection may not be construed to prohibit a governing body from:

- (a) Creating and enforcing rules that are more stringent than state law regarding charitable gaming as otherwise permitted in code; or
- (b) Denying a site authorization for just cause, including, after consultation with the attorney general, a violation of state law or local rules.

b. Annually applying for a license from the attorney general before July first on a form prescribed by the attorney general and remitting a one hundred fifty dollar license fee for each city or county that approves a site authorization. However, the attorney general may allow an organization that only conducts a raffle or calcutta in two or more cities or counties to annually apply for a consolidated license and remit a one hundred fifty dollar license fee for each city or county in which a site is located. An organization shall document that it qualifies as an eligible organization. If an organization amends its primary purpose as stated in its articles of incorporation or materially changes its basic character, the organization shall reapply for licensure. The attorney general may deny issuance of a license or deny renewal of a license to an eligible organization that has obtained approval of site authorization under subdivision a, if the organization or site are not in compliance with applicable laws and rules.

3. A licensed organization or organization that has a permit shall conduct games as follows:

- a. Only one licensed organization or organization that has a permit may conduct games at an authorized site on a day, except that a raffle may be conducted for a special occasion by another licensed organization or organization that has a permit when one of these conditions is met:
 - (1) When the area for the raffle is physically separated from the area where games are conducted by the regular organization.
 - (2) Upon request of the regular organization and with the approval of the alcoholic beverage establishment, the regular organization's license or permit is suspended for that specific time of day by the attorney general.
 - b. Except for a temporary site authorized for fourteen or fewer consecutive days for not more than two events per quarter or a licensed organization authorized on or before January 1, 2023, to conduct gaming at more than fifteen sites, a licensed organization, including a closely related organization, may not have more than ~~twenty-five~~fifteen sites unless granted a waiver by the attorney general. ~~If the attorney general finds that there is no other licensed organization interested in conducting gaming at a site for which a waiver is being sought, the attorney general may approve the waiver for no more than five sites.~~
 - c. Games of electronic quick shot bingo, electronic pull tabs, pull tabs, punchboards, twenty-one, paddlewheels, poker, and sports pools may be conducted only during the hours when alcoholic beverages may be dispensed according to applicable regulations of the state, county, or city. Electronic pull tabs must be conducted in a designated area where patrons must be twenty-one years of age or older to enter.
 - d. An organization may not permit a person under twenty-one years of age to directly or indirectly play pull tabs, punchboards, twenty-one, calcuttas, sports pools, paddlewheels, or poker. An organization may not permit an individual under eighteen years of age to directly or indirectly play electronic quick shot bingo. An organization may not permit an individual under eighteen years of age to directly or indirectly play bingo unless the individual is accompanied by an adult, bingo is conducted by an organization that has a permit, or the game's prize structure does not exceed that allowed for a permit.
 - e. An organization may not install more than ten electronic pull tab devices at a site.
 - f. An organization with more than fifteen licensed sites under subdivision b may not increase its number of sites beyond the number of sites licensed as of January 1, 2023.
 - g. An organization conducting gaming at an authorized site on January 1, 2023, may continue to operate gaming, including as provided under subsection 1 of section 53-06.1-06, at the authorized site regardless of whether the authorized site is an alcoholic beverage establishment as defined under section 53-06.1-01.
4. A permit, or site authorization and license, must be displayed at a site.

5. The attorney general may issue a conditional license to an eligible organization whose regularly issued license has expired or been suspended, revoked, or relinquished. The attorney general shall designate the time period for which the conditional license is valid and may impose any conditions.
6. A governing body or local law enforcement official may inspect a site's gaming equipment and examine or cause to be examined any gaming-related books and records of a licensed organization or organization that has a permit.

SECTION 3. AMENDMENT. Subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-10.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

3. An organization permitted to conduct raffles in this state may conduct ~~an~~ electronic fifty-fifty raffle either by manual drawing or by using a random number generator. ~~Fifty-fifty~~ Electronic fifty-fifty raffle tickets must be sold and drawings held onsite at the location of and on the date of the event. ~~Fifty-fifty~~ Electronic fifty-fifty raffles may not be conducted online over the internet.

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Subsection 5 of section 53-06.1-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

5. For a site where bingo is not the primary game:
 - a. If twenty-one or paddlewheels is conducted, the monthly rent may not exceed two hundred dollars multiplied by the necessary number of tables based on criteria prescribed by gaming rule. For each twenty-one table with a wager greater than five dollars, an additional amount up to one hundred dollars may be added to the monthly rent. If pull tabs is also conducted involving only a jar bar, the monthly rent for pull tabs may not exceed an additional one hundred seventy-five dollars. If pull tabs is conducted involving only a dispensing device or a jar bar and dispensing device, the monthly rent for pull tabs may not exceed an additional three hundred twenty-five dollars.
 - b. If twenty-one and paddlewheels are not conducted but pull tabs is conducted involving either a jar bar or dispensing device, the monthly rent may not exceed four hundred dollars.
 - c. If pull tabs is conducted using one or more electronic pull tab devices, the monthly rent may not exceed ~~an additional~~ seventy-five dollars per machine for the first five machines in the same venue. For each additional machine in the same venue beyond five, the monthly rent may not exceed ~~an additional fifty~~ seventy-five dollars per machine up to a maximum of one thousand ~~one~~ two hundred ~~twenty-five~~ fifty dollars per month for all electronic pull tab devices in a single venue.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Subsection 10 of section 53-06.1-15.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

10. Impose a monetary fine on a licensed organization, organization that has a permit, distributor, ~~or~~ manufacturer, or third-party business operating

gaming and working as an agent of the charity for failure to comply with this chapter or any gaming rule. The monetary fine for each violation by an organization is a minimum of twenty-five dollars and may not exceed two percent of the organization's average quarterly gross proceeds, or five thousand dollars, whichever is greater. The monetary fine for each violation by a distributor is a minimum of one hundred dollars and may not exceed five thousand dollars. The monetary fine for each violation by a manufacturer is a minimum of five hundred dollars and may not exceed two hundred fifty thousand dollars. This fine may be in addition to or in place of a license suspension or revocation.

SECTION 6. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - CHARITABLE GAMING.

1. During the 2023-24 interim, the legislative management shall study statewide charitable gaming comprehensively. The study must include input from the attorney general, stakeholders from large and small charitable organizations, local political subdivisions that authorize sites, gaming equipment manufacturers and distributors, gambling addiction counselors, and other industry leaders. The study must also include:
 - a. An evaluation of the economic impact of charitable gaming on the state in urban and rural areas;
 - b. An evaluation of gambling addiction and treatment services currently available;
 - c. An evaluation of the civic benefit of charitable gaming to the communities most closely related to the gaming sites;
 - d. An evaluation of how site authorization is approved and renewed, including whether charities have equitable access to sites;
 - e. An evaluation of the gaming tax structure;
 - f. An evaluation of public support for charitable gaming;
 - g. An evaluation of statewide local restrictions placed on charitable gaming;
 - h. An evaluation of gaming expansion;
 - i. An evaluation of site locations where gaming is taking place;
 - j. An evaluation of charitable gaming proceeds and the eligible uses of gaming proceeds, including the percentage of proceeds that may be used for administration;
 - k. An evaluation of the categories of organizations that are allowed to conduct charitable gaming, including the missions of such organizations;
 - l. An evaluation of the placement of gaming activity within a gaming site, including electronic pull tab device placement;
 - m. An evaluation of the rental rate paid by organizations to alcoholic beverage establishments; and

- n. An evaluation of the authority of the attorney general to regulate alcoholic beverage establishments.
2. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-ninth legislative assembly.

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on June 30, 2023.

SECTION 8. EMERGENCY. This Act is declared to be an emergency measure."

Renumber accordingly